
Tehama County
Thursday, April 23, 202610:00 AM
Flood Control and Water Conservation
District
Meeting Minutes

Tehama County Board of Supervisors
Chambers

727 Oak Street, Red Bluff, CA 96080
https://tehamacou nty. leg istar. com/Cal

endar.aspx

10:00 AM

Chairperson: Tom Walker Vice-Chairperson: Greg Jones
Directors: Matt Hansen, Rob Burroughs, Steve Zane

Justin Jenson, Deputy Director of Public Works-Water Resources; Lena Sequeira,
Administration

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance / lntroductions

10:08AM

Present Director Matt Hansen, Vice Chair Greg Jones, Director Rob

Burroughs, Chairperson Tom Walker, and Director Steve Zane

Public Comment
A resident commented on the Brown Act and their opinion of additions to the agenda. They
also discussed proposed changes to the fee structure and ordinance properttes.

A resident presented figures from annual reports and commented on increases in reported
numbers and changes made to records online. Also discussed corrections made in other
basins but not in the Corning Subbasin and questioned the accuracy of base numbers used by
consultants.

A resident stated their public comment had been submitted via email and expressed concerns
regarding the Groundwater Commission not reviewing the fee report, resolutions, and revised
ordinances prior to presentation. Also commented on the agenda order and timing of the fee
study adoption.

A resident from Corning called in to advise they would be participating via phone.

Walker reported receiving some public comment via email, which would be included in the
finalized minutes.

Page 1 of 16



1. Draft Demand Management Program Framework 26-0627
Jenson noted that the Groundwater Management (DM) Working Group had requested an
extension for review of the DM plan through today, and provided an update. He explained that
the working group has developed proposed methodologies and a step-by-step roadmap to
achieve DM, including near-term voluntary measures to reduce groundwater use or increase
surface water use.

He stated the approach is intended to address data gaps and outline how future actions will be
implemented. Jenson noted the document is a preliminary framework and has not yet received
final legal review. He requested Board feedback on whether the draft is acceptable to forward
to legalfor review and whether a two-month extension is appropriate. He also asked the Board
to identify any concerns before final legal review.

Jones stated that in a deficit situation, actions would need to be taken and asked whether fees
collected for an over drafted basin would remain within that basin or could be used in other
basins.

Jenson clarified that this is not addressed in the current document.

Walker commented that this would be above and beyond PMA fees.

Jenson confirmed.

Hansen stated charges should only apply where problems exist.

Jenson stated the goal is for funding to come from parcels or areas benefiting from or
contributing to projects, emphasizing incentives to reduce groundwater use through efforts
such as shifting to surface water or recharge projects. He noted this is why the funding
structure needs to remain separate.

Jones stated he had no concerns with that approach.

Hansen commented that the document reflects good progress, includes common-sense
phased actions, and provides a process to address undesirable results if they occur.

Jenson stated there had been difficulty gaining movement on the item and significant effort
was made to bring a draft forurard in a short timeframe. He noted the document reflects much
of the group's agreement moving forward, with smaller items still to be worked through as
identified in the attached discussion points. He added that some items may involve longer-term
planning discussions and continued to clarify discussion points.

Walker asked about the terminology used for triggers.

Jenson explained that a trigger is currently a set point for a sustainability indicator, though it
could evolve into a management threshold in the future. He noted the definition is intentionally
general at this stage, He added that undesirable results would be brought to the Board and
considered a trigger, and that additional triggers may be incorporated into the process over
time rather than relying on a single defined factor.

Page 2 of 16



Walker expressed appreciation for the work and noted the Board's desire to move forward with

voluntary measures. He stated he was willing to allow the additional time requested by the
group.

Jones agreed and stated he was also okay with extending the timeframe.

Burroughs asked whether the extension would be up to two months'

Jenson confirmed the extension would be up to two months and explained the reasoning

behind the request,

Burroughs expressed appreciation for the effort and stated agreement with granting the group

the requested extension.

Zane also agreed to the extension.

Hansen stated his agreement, noting it is better to take the time to get it right than to meet the

original deadline.

A resident asked about overlapping areas in Glenn County and whether coordination with them
is included in the document.

Jenson stated that both entities have separately passed resolutions committing to develop a

DM program, each working toward implementation independently but in a similar direction.

Hansen requested that Jenson send a copy to Glenn County.

Jenson agreed, stating that once a working document is available, it will be shared with them
for review.

Walker asked whether a formal vote or direction was needed.

Klausner responded that the Board could simply ask for objections.

Walker stated there were none and indicated he was okay with the two-month extension.

2. Flood Flow Diversion Program - Review of Policy 26-0621
Jenson described a proposed diversion program that would allow diversions under defined
threshold conditions, with set points determining when conditions are met. He explained that a
notification system would inform participants when they may begin or must stop diverting, with
the program brought forward as a complete package for Board approval.

He requested input on whether administration should be handled by District staff or
consultants, noting cost and staffing considerations. He added that participation would likely
begin small but could grow if the program is successful in incentivizing pafticipation. He also
identified future considerations such as equipment standards, screening requirements, and
compliance oversight.

Page 3 of 16



Walker asked whether the office would already be in the field or conducting oversight during
flood stage conditions.

Jenson responded that it depends on conditions and noted the District typically relies on
notifications from the State regarding river stages. He explained that those notifications help
determine whether inspections are conducted, though it is more difficult to predict conditions in

smaller watersheds compared to the main river system. He added that staff would likely be out
in the field during known flooding conditions, but that there is not a fixed trigger and decisions
are made based on judgment.

Burroughs asked whether all creeks are capable of being used for water diversions during
flood stages.

Jenson responded that yes, all creeks could potentially be used, but noted that data will be
built over time. He explained that the initial focus would be on creeks with existing monitoring
where flooding has occurred and caused impacts in the past, identifying approximately six
creeks to start. He added that the stream gage inventory and available data will be expanded
over time to support broader implementation.

Burroughs asked whether there is a specific reason District staff cannot perform the work, and
suggested exploring ways to complete it in-house before paying outside entities, emphasizing
a preference to keep work within the community rather than contracting outside the area.

Jenson responded that the work could be completed in-house if that is determined to best
serve the program, but noted that the District also has the option to pursue outside support if
needed.

Zane stated that, in his opinion, it would be best to keep the work in-house.

Hansen asked whether these costs were included in the PMA fees.

Jenson responded that some creeks are located within over drafted subbasins and others are
not. He explained that costs would be covered within the areas being assessed, but fees are
not recommended in non-over drafted basins, so those costs would not be covered there.

Hansen asked whether the program would fall under beneficial use rights.

Jenson noted that some systems are operated by USGS with telemetry, allowing the District to
obtain data from those sources.

Hansen stated he did not see how a consultant would be effective.

Jenson stated that the intent would be for consultants to determine the thresholds, though
noted staff could also perform the work, with a potential for error in either approach. He
clarified he was not recommending one option over the other, but was seeking Board direction
on how to proceed, noting that the decision often comes down to agency risk tolerance.

Hansen emphasized the imporlance of documentation when text notifications are sent to start
and stop diversions, noting it is the responsibility of the landowner to follow the rules. He stated
he believes the work should be done in-house and suggested PMA as an appropriate funding

Page 4 of 16



source.

Jenson stated he would bring forward a funding approach within the management zones in

over drafted areas for cost coverage. He noted there may be a small funding source for

flood-related activities and that it could potentially be incorporated into the flood budget.

Walker asked whether there are any legal issues regarding ownership of water after it has

been diverted under the proposed program.

Jenson stated the District holds temporary permits for the creeks, making the water subject to

District control under those permits, He noted that diversion users operate under District rules,

and policy will determine whether diverled water is treated as belonging to the user or not. He

added that agreements and related language will be brought back for Board consideration.

Burroughs asked whether water diverted and recharged in the same area would be considered

as not having changed ownership or been transferred.

Jenson provided clarification and further explanation.

Discussion followed regarding the concept of recharge from flood flow diversion.

Public comment
A resident expressed the opinion that the item should be addressed as a flood control issue

rather than an SGMA effort. They also commented on what they believe is covered under
SGMA, discussed their views on who should be paying for the program, and shared opinions
regarding jurisdiction of the item.

A resident commented on water storage regulations and flood control, referencing limits on

holding water and past issues with stock ponds. They shared views on floodwater capture and
governance of river notifications, noted the rapid and unpredictable nature of flooding, and

referenced historical conditions of Deer Creek. They also discussed stream monitoring and

expressed concern that readings are not always accurate.

Jenson stated that any instrument has the potential to be incorrect and that decisions must rely
on available equipment and data.

Walker stated a preference to keep the program in-house for now. He noted that in effotls to
incentivize participation, it can be difficult for early participants to see immediate benefits, and
suggested that those who pilot the program should be appropriately rewarded.

3. Exhaustion of Remedies Ordinance 2026-1 26-0625
Jenson stated this was the ordinance introduced at the previous meeting with no requested
changes and is now being brought forward for adoption. He explained the process encourages
resolving disagreements prior to litigation and emphasized working through issues first before
filing a lawsuit.

Walker asked what recourse is available if someone does not follow the required steps before
pursuing litigation.
Jenson explained that there are statutes of limitation requiring challenges to be filed within a

Page 5 of 16



certain timeframe. He stated the ordinance clarifies the District's position and provides a

process for parties to contest decisions prior to litigation.

Klausner stated that if someone fails to follow the required process and later pursues legal
action, the ordinance provides the District with a legal defense.

Walker stated that parties are being asked to follow the established process before bringing
legal action forward.

Public comment
A resident commented on a section of the ordinance and expressed opinions regarding the
formation and authority of the GSA, as well as the ordinance itself.

Burroughs asked whether the Board has the legal authority to act as the governing body.

Klausner responded affirmatively and explained that the Flood Control District itself serves as
the GSA, rather than being a separate entity.

Burroughs commented that the Board governs both the County and related agency functions.

Klausner further explained that the District has groundwater authority throughout the County,
and that the GSA is responsible for reporting to the State and working toward groundwater
sustainability under SGMA. He also discussed the authorities and powers granted under
SGMA.

Burroughs asked whether, based on the concerns raised, the Board is proceeding on the
correct path.

Klausner responded that, based on the information available today, the District is in a good
position.

Hansen moved to adopt the item.

RESULT: APPROVE
MOVER: Matt Hansen
SECONDER: Greg Jones

AYES: Director Hansen, Vice Chair Jones, Director Burroughs, Chairperson
Walker, and Director Zane

4. Water Extraction Fees Ordinance 2026-2 26-0626
Klausner addressed the Brown Act concerns raised earlier in the meeting and clarified the
District's responsibilities related to public access to meeting materials. He also noted that
documents submitted via email as public comment could be included in the meeting minutes.

He discussed the redlined version of the ordinance, explaining that a technical error occurred
during submission but that the updated redlined document was available for presentation at
the meeting. Klausner reviewed the document in detail, explained the reasoning behind the

Page 6 of 16



revisions, highlighted changes specifically requested by the Board, and discussed the

administrative appeal process and how it would function.

Hansen asked Klausner to read the section regarding the appeal process.

Klausner reviewed the revisions and changes related to the appeals process, explained the

reasoning behind them, and outlined how the appeal process would function. He noted that if

the process is adopted, the Board would need to enter into an agreement with the County for

hearing officer services.

Klausner also reviewed the final page of the document and clarified that Brown Act

requirements mandate documents be made available to the public upon request. He stated

that the District office had the redlined version of the document, posted it as soon as possible,

and made it available to anyone requesting it.

Hansen asked how the ordinance relates to the previously approved appeals process,

Klausner explained that the prior ordinance addressed objections to the fee methodology itself,

while this ordinance addresses appeals related to how individual fees are calculated and

applied. He noted that property owners could submit independent data, such as water meter
information, to challenge an assessed fee.

Jenson agreed with the explanation.

Burroughs asked whether someone with a dispute would be able to speak with staff in the

office before entering the formal appeal process.

Jenson responded that staff would always be available to address questions or clarify issues,

and noted that matters requiring a formal determination could then proceed through the

appeals process. He provided an example and further explanation.

Burroughs stated he wanted to ensure that people with legitimate concerns have an

opportunity to be heard before involving attorneys.

Klausner explained that the process would depend on who the Board designates to make
those determinations, noting that currently Justin serves in that role, and that the formal appeal
process serves as recourse when informal resolution is unsuccessful.

Burroughs stated he wanted to ensure there is a process for addressing concerns before legal
actions.

Jenson responded that staff is always available to meet with the public regarding concerns.

Klausner explained the ordinance would return in May for adoption and noted that any
additional changes before then would require a special meeting.

Burroughs asked whether the item would return to the Commission.

Jenson explained that the Commission is an advisory body, while ordinances creating legal
Page 7 of 16



outcomes fall under the Board's jurisdiction.

Public Comment

A resident shared their opinion on changing the ordinance to state groundwater extractor, the
accuracy of the document and shared what they thought the rules meant.

A resident asked for clarification on the meaning of de minimis use and referenced a specific
section of the ordinance related to a threshold.

Jenson stated that this allows thresholds to be set in the future.

Discussion followed regarding the issue.

The resident continued speaking.

Hansen asked whether a definition is needed for groundwater extractor.

Walker asked about the difference between a user and an extractor.

Discussion followed regarding whether there is a distinction between a groundwater extractor
and a user.

A resident reviewed the ordinance and suggested some language could be cleaned up. He
discussed volumetric versus per-parcel fee structures, noting volumetric methods can be more
complex, and expressed a preference to remove the highlighted language.

Walker commented that the section was intentionally left vague to address in the next phase of
the process.

The resident continued to elaborate their thoughts.

Walker stated he is working with counsel and staff to stay informed, and noted that a
per-parcel fee structure may carry more legal risk compared to a volumetric approach.

Klausner noted that the ordinance should be viewed as a framework for regulating all fees. He
explained that the language could be narrowed to apply only to fees under a specific
methodology, but if the Board later adopted a different approach, the ordinance would need to
be amended to account for those changes.

Jones stated the ordinance should provide flexibility for both the current Board and future
Boards.

The resident continued sharing opinions regarding proposed language changes.

Zane agreed with the resident and stated that if exemptions are not clearly spelled out, the
language could be left open to interpretation. He expressed the opinion that some ground
should be exempt.

Hansen responded that the ordinance does specify exemptions, including land outside of the
Page 8 of 16



subbasins.

The resident expressed confusion with the language and suggested the ordinance could be

cleaned up for clarity.

A resident questioned the authority to establish fees and commented on the Board's authority
within the GSA. The resident also shared interpretations of sections of the ordinance.

Klausner responded to concerns about the ordinance language, explaining that although the

wording may appear broad, the definition specifically applies only to groundwater extracted

within the basin, including situations where water may later be moved outside the basin.

A resident expressed concerns regarding how the ordinance was presented to the public and

encouraged clear and accurate communication of information.

Hansen stated he agreed with the resident's concerns, but noted that the process has evolved

and some changes were made to ensure the ordinance is legally defensible. He added that

maintaining flexibility is beneficial and expressed support for the item.

Jenson clarified that the ordinance itself does not establish a fee, and that the subsequent
steps in the process are what would create the actual fees.

Jones stated that the fees are created later in the process, and noted that future Boards would
have the ability to make changes if needed

Hansen moved to waive the reading and accept the language changes to the previously

introduced ordinance. Jones seconded the motion.

Burroughs asked for clarification on the language changes.

Walker referred to the redline version previously presented.

Burroughs noted that other areas are covered and stated that if a property is not in the basin, it

would not be subject to the fee.

Klausner clarified that if groundwater is not being extracted from the basin, then no fee would
be applied.

Zane stated he would like to see additional work done on the item and voted no.

RESULT: APPROVE
MOVER: Matt Hansen
SECONDER: Greg Jones

AYES: Director Hansen, Vice Chair Jones, and Chairperson Walker

NAYS: Director Burroughs, and Director Zane

Klausner suggested holding a special meeting io bring back proposed changes.

Jones asked whether that would prevent addressing the next item.
Page 9 of 16



Klausner responded that the Board could still proceed, including passing resolutions
and adopting fees, and explained the process.

Jenson clarified that the fee comes later and is not set by the ordinance.

Jones asked whether fees could still be set without an ordinance defining the parameters.

Klausner stated that they could and provided further explanation.

Walker asked about forming an ad hoc committee before a special meeting.

Klausner noted the importance of the issue and emphasized the need to ensure all voices are
heard.

Walker proposed forming an ad hoc committee with the two members who voted no, followed
by a special meeting if needed, or continuing if concerns were resolved.

Klausner confirmed.

Walker asked if the ad hoc needed to be formally established

Klausner stated that it was up to the Chair

Hansen suggested addressing the matter during Board matters.

The meeting recessed for lunch at 12.00 and reconvened at 1.00.

Zane made a motion to reconsider ltem #4, Ordinance 2026-2. Jones seconded the
motion.

Discussion followed regarding the rules and procedures for reconsidering the item.

RESULT: APPROVE
MOVER: Steve Zane
SECONDER: Greg Jones
AYES: Director Hansen, Vice Chair Jones, Director Burroughs,

Chairperson Walker, and Direclor Zane

Klausner reads proposed language addition presented to him during the break, which would be
added to Subarticle A of the administrative fee section stating that no administrative fee shall
be imposed on parcels located outside of the basin and that do not receive extracted
groundwater from within a basin.

Hansen asked whether a similar change would also be made in the PMA section.

Klausner explained that the PMA fee language does not currently include provisions
addressing parcels receiving water transferred from within a basin to outside the basin. He
noted that similar changes could be made to the PMA fee section if the Board chooses, but

Page 10 of 16



stated that this was not the original intent and would be up to the Board to decide.

Discussion followed regarding wells being drilled outside the basins and their potential impacts
on aquifers within the basins.

Walker asked if, in addition to Director Zane's amendment, Burroughs had any proposed
changes.

Burroughs responded that he had none and that the clarification was sufficient.

Discussion followed regarding the language in the PMA fee section and which parties would be

subject to the fee,

Klausnerstated thatthe changes could be accommodated and, if the Chair preferred to see
them displayed in that format, they could be brought back at the end of the meeting.

Public comment

A resident asked for clarification on the definition of basin versus subbasin.

Klausner clarified.

A resident discussed water as being transient and shared views on fee responsibility, stating
that wells should be responsible for the administrative fee.

A resident stated they do not extract water in Manton.

Jenson stated the key issue is that the Water Code allows fees to be charged only for
groundwater extracted from within the basin, and noted that charging an "extractor" outside the
basin would exceed the agency's authority.

Klausner responded that the language could be adjusted and brought back later in the meeting
for further consideration.

5. Resolutions to Set Fees 26-0628
Klausner explained that the two resolutions are similar in structure and that the detailed fee
explanation, which is not yet finalized, will later be attached to the resolutions. He stated that
the first portion outlines the intent and purpose supporting the legislative action.

Walker asked whether there were any changes to the administrative fee resolution.

Klausner responded that staff is currently seeking recommendations, with the item expected to
return next month for approval. He explained the resolution would not be finally adopted until
the public hearing on the fees, and that the Board would consider adoption after the ballot tally
is completed.

Jenson stated that the purpose of bringing the resolutions forward now was to allow the Board
time to review them, read through the language, and provide comments prior to adoption.

Page 11 of 16



Klausner explained that the administrative fee resolution contains three sections and reviewed
them, noting that the second resolution is similar but specific to PMA.

Walker asked whether the fee amounts listed are only approximations and whether that would
limit the Board to collecting only those amounts over the identified time period.

Jenson explained that the proposed fees apply to the current time period and can be adjusted
in the future. He stated staff had been advised to identify both an initial fee amount and a
maximum allowable fee. He added that the resolution itself would establish the fee structure,
while the Board would later take action on the actual fee amounts when the item returns with
staff recommend ations.

Discussion followed regarding language related to future fee increases.

Burroughs noted that the Bowman Subbasin is not considered over drafted and therefore
recommended removing Bowman from matters related to overdraft issues.

Klausner clarified that Bowman is not included in the PMA fee resolution, but is included in the
administrative fee resolution because the District still has obligations to take certain actions
and reporl to DWR. He explained that the administrative fee is intended to cover those costs
and further elaborated on the distinction.

Discussion followed regarding Bowman and associated fees.

A resident commented on basin and countywide fee distribution, questioned the basis for the
administrative fee, and expressed concerns regarding the explanation of costs and proposed
figures.

A resident was commented on Exhibit A, stating that there is irrigated land within the Bowman
Subbasin that utilizes both surface water and groundwater. The resident expressed the opinion
that Bowman should be included in the management fee structure.

A representative from Farm Bureau commented on SGMA implementation and expressed
support for the work toward groundwater sustainability. They noted discussions with staff and
the Farm Bureau Board regarding volumetric fees, referenced a proposed $2.70 per acre-foot
rate, and raised concerns about how fees account for partially irrigated acreage and changing
land use conditions They then read and explained the proposal supported by Farm Bureau.

Walker asked for proposed changes from Board members.

Jones stated he had none.

Hansen stated he had no changes, but suggested leaving the fee numbers out until they are
formally voted on.

Discussion followed regarding whether the numbers should remain included in the document.

Walker stated he was comfortable leaving the numbers in place, noting that although the
administrative fee amount had changed when first presented to the Board, it has
remained unchanged since the public outreach process.

Page 12 of 16



Hansen stated he had no other concerns.

6. Set Public Hearings for Fee Setting 26-0629

Jenson stated the item was intended to direct staff to send flyers and set public hearing dates

as part of the fee-setting process. He noted that June '18 was a tight turnaround to complete

and distribute all required materials but may be the best available date.

Discussion followed regarding scheduling constraints and timing

Itwas proposed to hold the public hearings on June 18, with the administrative fee hearing at

9:00 a.m. and the PMA fee hearing at 11:00 a.m.

RESULT: APPROVE
MOVER: Greg Jones
SECONDER: Steve Zane

AYES: Director Hansen, Vice Chair Jones, Director Burroughs, Chairperson

Walker, and Director Zane
7. Fee Study 26'0630
Jenson introduced the item and noted that LSCE would be presenting fee
recommendations developed by LSCE and Colantuono.

Walker asked whether the Groundwater Commission had reviewed the document.
Jenson responded that the Commission had reviewed the data and made recommendations
but had not seen the final document.

Jacques DeBras with LSCE explained that the information being presented was similar to that
shared at the public meetings and reviewed the fee study process. He then presented a

PowerPoint.

DeBras turned the presentation over to Greg Clumpner with LSCE, who reviewed the fee
calculations and presented the available fee options for the various water user categories.

Walker asked whether an ADU would be considered a connection. Jenson confirmed that it
would.

Clumpner continued the PowerPoint presentation, noting that the Groundwater Commission
had recommended reducing the budget to $1 million.

Discussion followed regarding annual versus five-year fees and what would be accomplished
under the proposed budget.

Clumpner continued reviewing the recommendations and provided summaries of the fee
options.

Walker asked about the Assessor's fee. Jenson explained that it would require an agreement
with another agency and would need to be renegotiated.

Page 13 of 16



Walker asked whether a fee was already being collected through property taxes.

Jenson responded that it was not, noting that a previous $0.29 fee had expired.

Clumpner with LSCE continued the presentation, reviewing the recommended PMA and
administrative fees.

Jones asked whether PMA fees v'rould remain within the basin generating the revenue.
Jenson provided clarification.

DeBras commented on the outreach efforts and explained how the fee framework would
operate, including an overview of the preliminary budget. He also reviewed the process for fee
adoption and the upcoming public hearing.

Jenson clarified the process, reviewed the Groundwater Commission's recommendation, and
restated the action being requested of the Board.

Burroughs asked about well moratoriums.

Discussion followed regarding well permits and related restrictions.

Public Comment
A resident commented that farmers have not had sufficient opportunity to address groundwater
issues and shared concerns regarding the proposed fee structure and projects. Jenson
responded to the concerns raised.

A resident commented on the proposed budget and shared their opinion. Jenson clarified the
budget and cost accounting structure.

Discussion followed regarding the process.

A resident expressed concerns regarding groundwater management and the proposed fee
structure.

Jones expressed appreciation for the concerns raised and shared his views on the matter. He
discussed sharing the burden of administrative fees and stated that he favored a per-parcel
administrative fee.

Hansen shared his views on the proposed model, stating that while assumptions are required,
it is based on the best available information and is equitable. He discussed challenges facing
local farmers and groundwater management efforts.

Jenson clarified that grant-funded projects have contributed to groundwater recharge.

Hansen stated that consultant input indicates recharge alone will not resolve overdraft
conditions and that groundwater use reductions will also be necessary.

Zane noted the Groundwater Commission's significant work and stated that some areas in the

Page 14 of 16



county will require addressing ongoing groundwater issues. He added that the proposed fees

are a reasonable starting point to move forward.

Burroughs stated that administrative fees are necessary and noted that agreement could be

reached once final numbers are established.

Jenson clarified that the figures presented were based on examples and that the Groundwater

Commission had provided recommendations regarding potential changes. He added that the

Board could accept or modify the recommendation, but final numbers could not be finalized

without direction.

Burroughs stated that recharge is part of the solution and expressed support for being more

aggres-ive with recharge efforts. He emphasized the importance of public participation in

solutions and stated concerns about expanding orchards and increasing groundwater stress.

Walker stated that he agreed with the Groundwater Commission's perspective and noted that
his understanding had evolved since the beginning of the process. He expressed hope that

continued learning would occur among stakeholders and stated his support for using

volumetric-based calculations for both Administrative and PMA fees.

Hansen stated he would consider a $1 million cap if farmers were willing to assume the
associated risk. Walker agreed and explained his reasoning.

Burroughs also supported the $1 million budget cap but emphasized the importance of

ensuring funding is available for potential well replacement needs.

Jenson commented on well mitigation concerns and available funding.

Burroughs asked whether any of the $1 million budget would be used for well mitigation.
Jenson confirmed that some funding is included for that purpose.

Walker called for a motion to accept the fee study and direct staff to send mailers, using the
volumetric approach and incorporating the Groundwater Commission's recommendation.

RESULT: APPROVE
MOVER: Matt Hansen
SECONDER: Rob Burroughs

AYES: Director Hansen, Director Burroughs, Chairperson Walker, and

Director Zane

NAYS: Vice Chair Jones

8. Updates 26-0622

Groundwater Recharge

Jenson noted that the proposed fees include funding for recharge activities.

Demand Management Plan Working Group

Page 15 of 16



Covered earlier in the meeting.

Outreach Ad Hoc
Jenson added that they had recently met to discuss the fees.

9. Flood Related ltems 26-0613

Jenson stated that the Calsip grant is now in place to install flood gages on streams,

The meeting recessed at 3:05PM and reconvened at 3:1OPM

4. Water Extraction Fees Ordinance 2026-2 26-0626
The Board returned to ltem #4lo revisit proposed language changes.

Klausner read the proposed language changes for ltem #4 as follows:

For the administrative fee: no administrative fee shall be imposed on a parcel that is outside of
a basin and does not receive extracted groundwater from within a basin.

For the PMA fee: the language was updated to mirror the administrative fee, stating that each
parcel which receives extracted groundwater from an over drafted basin shall be subject to the
PMA fee in the amount established by resolution of the Board of Directors, and that no PMA
fee shall be imposed on a parcel that is outside an over drafted basin and does not receive
extracted groundwater from an over drafted basin.

RESULT: APPROVE AS AMENDED
MOVER: Steve Zane
SECONDER: Matt Hansen

AYES: Director Hansen, Vice Chair Jones, Director Burroughs,
Chairperson Walker, and Director Zane

10. Board Matters

Burroughs stated he would like to revisit the moratorium issue. Walker responded that it would
be addressed after Demand Management.

Adjourn

3:12PM

Page 16 of 16



Lena Sequeira

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Attachments:

Follow Up Flag:

Flag Status:

Gail Wallace < gnerdtude@aol.com >

Tuesday, April 21, 2026 7:58 AM

tcbos@tehama.gov; rburroughs@tehama.gov;gjones@tehama.gov;Justin.lenson;

lizmerry5B@gmail.com; mhansen@tehama.gov; twalker@tehama.gov; Gabriel Hydrick;

Lena Sequeira; mward5577@outlook.com; szane@tehama.gov;

susanpriceconsulti ng @ gmai l.com; production@ redbluffdai lynews.com;

tprovine@tehama.gov; Red Bluff Daily Editor

Formal Complaint Regarding GSA Agency Fee setting ordinance, Financial Oversight,

Accounting Practices, and Agency Authority and Public Comment.

Public comm enl 4232026 fees.Pdf

Follow up

Flagged

Formal Complaint Regarding GSA Agency Fee setting ordinance, Financial Oversight, Accounting Practices, and Agency

Authority.

To: Clerk of the Board
Tehama County Board of Supervisors,
Tehama County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (Flood Control Board, FCB), tlie

Groundwater Commission (GWC), and the Groundwater SLrstainability Agency (GSA)

Tehama County Grand Juty,
District Attorney,

State Controllers Office
Tehama County Auditor

Complaint 1 : The Public requires full financial accounting and an accurate description of how the Agency's power and

Authority are excersed. The Ordinance says "A statemer.rt of the factual basis for the determination of the fee" is required and

has not been presented. To insure Integrity this "factual basis statement" would be prepared by a qualified Financial Analyst,

Auditor or a Cost Estimator. When preparing the statements of facts it is crr-rcial to represent only factual conditions, and

misrepresentations have significant consequences. Excluded would be non-Governmental Accounting Staff, Consultant's,

County counsel, or Board members.

Tehama County Charter say no entity except the Board of Sr-rpervisol''s can assess fees. The Tehama County Charter Arlicle l,
Sec. 2: The powers mentioned in the preceding section can be exercised only by a Board of Suoervisors, or by agents and

officers actine under their outhoritv or bv outhoritv of luw or of this Cltarter.

In the Agenda fee repoft "Tehama GSA's (rvho is this ner.vly named Teharna GSA?) fee authority is derived from the SGMA-

specific legislation codified in Water Code 10730 thror-rgh 1073l "Financial Authority." The Board of Supervisors has

conveyed no authority to "determine whether, when, and how SGMA-related fees, assessments, or other funding mechanisms

will be considered and adopted, subject to applicable [aw. " Declaring authority from SGMA legislation does not mean you are

a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and yor.r have to be a GSA to have Fee authority. Just because you state you have

authority doesn't mean it is true, prove it Public Hearing, Joint Polvet'Authority, Memorandum of Agreements.

Complaint 2: The Ordinance states that "The District bears the initial burderr of producing evidence supporling the fee

determination or the action". I'r'n respectfully requesting all financial evidence be available for public revierv for the Ordinance

reading and adoption meeting on Wednesday April 22,2026.

!



Thus far the initial Agency's Producing Evidence supporting the fee amount has not been established. Greg Clumpner, Fee

Consultant states that'oNo responsibility is assumed fbr inaccLrracies in reporling by Tehama GSA, its consultants and

representatives". Additionally; he is a self-styled fee sub-consultant whose qualifications and proposal were never agonized or
presented in a public record A Brown Act issue. When questioned staff indicated that No Request for proposals was conducted,

No Contract terms were brought forward before the board and the work was "under threshold" and "paid by Grant funding
which are simply false statements".

Also please provide publication notices and publish dates information to comply with Govetnrrent code 6066.

Complaint 3: The County misrepresents collection of GSA administrative fees which overlap and are a duplication of GSA
Administrative fees when this Ordinance is adopted.

1.) Tehama County General Fund Taxes Budget 603 page 277
2.). GSA Fee Ordinance presented here $ 1.78 Million
3.) GSA SGMA Reimbursement (unrepofied amounts)

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) states that "The California Constitution requires the state to

reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs rrandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures

for making that reimbursement". What amount has the been billed
and collected according to this provision? Youl fee stLrdy sa1,'s nothing o1'the amounts paid or this funding sollrce, (GSA has

received approx. 6-10 million to date). The state Controller''s office states that "Tehama County has been reimbursed 100% for
SGMA related expenses". The old ".29 per acre Wcll Registlation lees at'e not covered under SGMA.

Complaint 4: Demonstrate Equitable distribution of program expenses over basins by parcel area. The Ordinance does not

address the actual cost of service or explain and different between Administrative costs only necessary in the managed sub-

basins of Red Bluff, Corning, Antelope and Los Molinos for SGMA compliance, financial reporting, coordination, data

management (non duplicated items).

Not including the Administrative revenue the ordinance does not taking into account proportionality reflecting the actual cost of
seryice of the the unmanaged areas nor it take into account GSA Grant Adrninistlative fees paid reirnbursed by the state in an

undetermined amounts but at least 591,400 9122 (see invoice) A Fee study should identify the full costs of service for recovery

from fees and then translates it's costs into a workable fee structure. Your presented pages for the public (Appendix A) does

not identiS, any service costs to recover. It uses an amount of $ 1.78 rnillion unapproved planning budget this does not meet the

initial burden of producing evidence to suppoft this action. Prop 21 8, specifically, its requirement that a property-related fee or

charge "shall not exceed the proportional cost of the service attribLrtable to the parcel."

The Table below is the adopted GSA Budget (page277) which represer-rts all GSA administrative fees Countywide collected.

The GSA's actua budset Schedule 9 lor l- UND 60

Adopted Budget Actual GSA
Administrative fee
collected

Adjustments State
Paid Admin

Adjusted Totals

FY 2423 $470,457 -91 ,400 47 0,457

FY 23t23 828,733 828,733

FY 24125* 6,693,170 -6,100,000 593,170

* FY 24125 $6,693,170 Prop 68 Grant Funding removed Corning sub basin $3,500,000, Red Bluff sub-basin $800,000,
Antelope $1,000,000, Los Molinos $800,000 Total $6,100,000

You can't charge twice for the same thing your fee study needs to address multiple collections of GSA Adrninistrative fees.

Identif, the "old" .29 per acre Countywide Administrative Well Registration Fees Costs of Service and amounts collected and

held for "Data Management costs, Legal Services, Staff tirne, and deduct those costs".
GSA Budget Fund 603 Schedule 9 2024-25 page277 Budget Book. Revenue lists Property tax revenue of $ 192,524. The
presented fee study does not include any mention of secured tax revenue. The General fund tax source fi'om these funds is from
Assessor Property tax Valuations for wells. This is an already existing Fee structure collectedicollecting amount for
"Regulatory Well Values secured tax taxation". Tlie Board needs to document the amounts on the official administrative record



for the disposition of these funds and any changing conditions and document the rnethodology, criteria, and the evidence of
those costs of service in the (the official decision-making file) Deduct those costs.

Existing Contractual obligations between CSGSA ancl Floocl Control for GSA adrninistrative fees expenses were not included in

the presented fee study. The GSA is paying the CSGSA GSA Achninistrative Fees for ASSESSMENTS to Corning Sub Basin

Parcels/wells/Acres for $4,950. Why? See page 4 of the Corning CSA fee study and I quote "For option I the lands within the

boundarieswouldreceiveaCSGSA prop2lsFeerollnoticeandcollectfeesthroughthe(TeharnaCounty)propertytaxbill'"
deadlines have aiready past and the grand jury said nope and the Cor-rnty has a judgement against them for that. Define the

Administrative fee amount and explain why Corning GSA Adrninistrative costs of service (duplioated f-ee studies for one) is

twice as expensive as other sub-basins.

Section F. "The Executive Director rnay impose a tjne or-r any propelty owuel'that taiis to subtnit a GSA Well Registration

fonn". Due process is being violated here. How rnuch, Horv otien,Who is the "ExecLttive Director? The vacant Public Works

Director? Staff any person opening rnail. The Fee Adnrinister', GOD.

Section H. The fine may be tripled if a propefiy owner submits a GSA Well Registration fbrm which fraudLrlently states that

there is no well on a parcel. What no hearing process, Who decides jLrst a guy decides if he likes yott or not?

It is unacceptable from an accounting and fonnula stanclpoint to say that all costs will be charged tor only 17,149 parcels pay

100% ofthe cost ofservice.

Key Components of Allowable Administrative Expenses sub-basirr only not reimbursed by SGMA.
o Personnel Costs: Salaries and benefits fbr staff iuvolvecl in groundwater lnanagelnent.
o Operational Expenses: Costs lelated to otflce sLrpplies. Lrtilities, and cotntnttnication.
o Consulting Fees: Payments for extelnal consultants or expcrts assisting in groundlvater sustaitlability ef'torts.

. Program Development: Expenses incurred in cleveloping and irnplernenting groundrvatet' sustainability progralns,

including resealch aud data collection

Revenues are used only for their intended purpose o'not for past legal appeals for what staff believes is to be true"

GSA Directors note that the governmental activity funded by the fee is not provided to those not charged.

GSA/FCB/TCGSA terms for Assumed volurnetlic and the recornmended methodology must be follorved for Colning basin.

No itemized breakdown showing how staff hours or enforcernent costs are allocated
No confirmation that fees collected in one basin stay in that basin

No publicly accessible tracking system for SGMA-related charges

Grant reimbursements Amounts need to be identifred and rernoved per SGMA and GAAP accounting rules.

Recommendation I : When the Board deliberates the fee ordinance; I respectively request the addition of a "trust styled"

management oversight and accounting policy or ad-hoc contrrittee fol the use of these proposed Administrative and Program

Fee funds.

o A Separate Fund Accounting: E,stablislt distinct accoultts fbr dillerent f-ees to tracli tevenue and expenditules acculately
due to the new fee types and prograrn recluircments. Dernand mauagement shotrltl be treated as a specific tnatter to
lxauage with differing sub-basir-r programs and reterrtion policies. This lequires a Boarcl molion to direct Auditor to
accomplish this.

o This inciudes perhaps defining the pr:rpose, eligibilitl, cliteria, and spending lirnits to ensLrre llnds ale used

appropriately.

e Regular Audits and Reporting
. Lnplernent reguiar audits to assess the hnancial health and cornpliance olfcc and pl'ograln trust fitnds and its

objectives. Mandate regular financial repofis to bc subntitted to the governing body and rnade available to the public.

o Fee and prograrn funds reporting Quartell;, with the resr-rlts agenda can enhance transparenc),'ancl build pLtblic trust
o Enhance financial lranagement ancl reporting fbr

Under **Water Code $10730(a)**, a groundwater sLrstainabilitl/ agency (GSA) may impose f-ees only to:



Fund groundwater management activities, which : ?$$$. "do impose identifiable administrative costs on the District". What is
the amount identified?

Reflect the costs attributable to groundrvater extraction or related benefit. Which is = ?$$$$

"Parcels with verified de-minimus use below a Board-established threshold;" Define this.

"Do impose identifiable administrative costs on the District". YoLr stated it but not quantified costs. The public hearing process

requires simple amounts identified. The District bears the initial burden of producing evidence sLrppol'ting the fee determination
or the action.
Board of Directors shall consider and the District shall respond in writing to.

any timely written objections. The Board of Directors may adiouln the

Hearing to another date if necessary to respond to comments received after

the agenda is posted for the meeting at rvhich the Hearing occurs. The
District's responses shall explain the substantive basis for retainittg or
altering the proposed fee, charge, or assessment in respotrse to r'vritten

objections, inctuding any reasons to reject requested amendrnents. I sLrbmitted many tvritten objections letter's the latest is

March 26,2026 and am still waiting for the District's written response.

Complaint5 : ORDINANCE NO. 2026-1

The District Fee Remedies Procedure
Issue: Funding
7.1 Board Authority; Separate Fee Process
"The GSA Board retains sole authority"

There is no GSA Board, or agendas. Refer to the rneeting minutes fi'om March Flood Control Board to verifu this status.

The GSA is an improperly formed entity. Flood Control published a "Notice of Intent"dated November 3,2015 stating that the

Flood control Board will be the GSA and filed this with he state Watel Board and has used "GSA Requirements Water Code

10723.8 (a)(4). "A combination of local agencies may fonn a groundwater sustainability agency through use of a joint powers

agreement or other legal agreem ent (10723.6 (a). Filing a Notice of Intent lrleans the Board intends to form an entity but has

done nothing tlius far to form this agency at a rninimr.un; yolr need for the administrative record (the official decision-making

file). Bylarvs, meeting schedules, filings with State Controller, Agency tnetnbers and makeup, formation authority (BOS to

GSA). Budget, Accounting, and Funding identified i.e. Teharna County propemy tax commitment, User fees costs, in-Lieu fees

from Water extractors , The incorporated Cities legal agreernent and committ-nents fi'om others like pt'isot-ts, hospitals, state, and

federal agencies use and benefit all are reflective ofan attributable cost and benefit.

Why is the Flood Control Board stating tl-rey are tlre legal authority when they have only filed a "Notice of Intent"? A Notice of
Intent is a formal declaration that you plan to do sornethirrg specific. sent early enor:gh to give the other side tirne to respond.

See City of Red Bluff Response letter Dated Oct 9,2025 stating"That the City interests must be considered. . . in the

development and operation". The fee study does not appear to consider "the largest supplier of municipal water" In some

contexts, like SGMA the law reqnires it before yolt can take action.

This is your stated process how about you use this as a test case:
1. The written objections and the District's response warrant clarifications
to the proposed fee, charge, or assessment.

2. To reduce the proposed fee, charge or assessmeut.

3. To further review the proposed fee, charge, or assessment before
determining whether clarification or reduction is needed.

4. To proceed with the Hearing, to continue it, or to abandon the proposal.

GailWallace
8305 Willie way
Los Molinos, Ca.96055
530 386-3193 or 530-200-2314



gnerdtude@aol.com



Public comment 4123 12026

Good evening Board Members,

I am here today to raise serious concelns regarding transparency, legal authority, and financial

accountability in this proposed ordinance.

First, the public is entitled to a full flnancial accounting and a clear explanation of horv this

agency is exercising its autholity. The ordinance itself requires "ct statentent rf the Joctuol basis

for the determination of the fee. " That statement has not been provided.

Aproper factual basis must come from qualified flnancial professionals-such as an auditor,
financial analyst, or cost estimator-not from consultants, staff, or legal counsel. Without that,

the integrity of the fee structure is fundarnentally compromised.

Second, authority is being asserted-but not proven.

The Tehama County Charter is clear: only the Board of Supervisol's, or those legally authorized

by it, may impose fees. Yet the agenda report claims that "Tehama GSA" derives authority from
SGMA. Declaring authority under state larv does not make it so. You must demonstrate that
authority through formal action-such as a Joint Por.vers Agreement, Memorandum of
Agreement, or official delegation from the Board of Supelvisors. To date, that proof has not been

presented.

Third, the ordinance requires that the District bear the initial burden of producing evidence to
support the fee. That evidence has not been made available.

The fee consultant has explicitly disclaimed responsibility for inaccuracies, and there rvas no

transparent procurement process-no RFP, no contract approval, and no public revierv. That
raises serious concerns under the Brorvn Act.

Additionally, required publication notices under Government Code 6066 have not been clearly
documented.

Fourth, the financial structure itself appears duplicative and noncompliant.

You areproposing $1.78 million in nerv fees rvhile existing revenues already include in general
fund taxes, property tax allocations, priol rvell registration fees, and millions in state SGMA
reimbursements. The State Controller indicates these costs may already be fully reimbursed.

You cannot charge the public trvice firr the same service.

Under Proposition 21 8, fees must not exceed the proportional cost of service attributable to each
parcel. Yet this ordinance does not identify actual service costs, does not allocate costs by basin,
and does not demonstrate proportionality. Instead, it r:elies on an unapproved planning budget-
not evidence.

Finally, there are serious due process concerns.



The ordinance allorvs fines to be imposecl-and even tripled-rvithout a defined hearing process,

without clear authority, and rvithout identifying who is making those decisions. That is not

acceptable.

In closing,I respectfully request that the Board paLlse this process and require:

A complete and verifled financial accounting

Clear legal proof of authority
Full public disclosure of all supporting evidence

And a compliant fee structure based on actual, proportional cost of service

Until those conditions are met, proceeding rvith this ordinance rvottld not meet the legal or

ethical standards required.

Thank you.

Gail Wallace

8305 Willie way

Los Molinos

530-200-231 4 or 530-3 86-3 193

gnerdtude@aol.com



Lena Sequeira

From: Andrew Grady <gradydrew8T@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April22,2026 B:43 AM

To: Lena Sequeira

Subject: Public Comment (4/23/26) TCFCWCD Meeting

Attachments: To Board of Directors.pdf; Objection to the proposed Tehama County GSA

administrative f (2).pdf

Hi Lena,

I attached two PDFs that contain my pubtic comments for the 4123126 TCFCWCD Meeting. I have atready

email,ed the two documents directty to the Directors, but l'm requesting that they be inctuded in the
meeting minutes. Thank you!

Best Regards,

Andrew Grady

Tehama County resident and property owner

_l



April2l.2026

Formal Protest of Groundwater Fee Methodology and Applicabilifl to Rural

Residential Groundwater Users -- As Presented in the 4-23-27 Tehama Counh'

Flood Control and Water Consen'ation District Meeting Agenda

To the Tehama County GSA Directors.

1. PURPOSE OF PROTEST

This written protest is submitted to object to the proposed groundwater user fee as applied to

rural residential parcels. The objection concems: lack of transparent derivation for rural

residential per-acre coefficients. discrepancy between household water use and billing

assumptions. lack of proportionality. and insufficient evaluation of de minimis user exemption

under SGMA (Water Code $10730(a)).

2. SGMA STATUTORY FRAMEWORK - DE MNIMIS USERS

Water Cl'ode !10730(a1 provides:

"A groundt)ater sustainability agenc)'(GSA) may impose./bes... to./ilntl the co,st,s of'u

groundu'ater sustainability program... A groundy,ater sustainabili|' agenq'shall nol impose a

.fee pursuant to this subdivision on de mininti^s extractor unless the agenq'has reguloled lhe

users pursuant to this part. "

This statutory language establishes two ke.v principles:

1. GSAs have authority to impose fees to fund groundwater sustainability programs.

2. GSAs may not impose fees on de minimis extractors unless those users are regulated

under SGMA.

Accordingly, any fee imposed on de minimis users must be supported by a determination that

such users:

1. are not de minimis

2. or have been regulated in a manner that justifies fee imposition.

No such explicit determination is provided in the 2026 Tehama GSA Fee Report pertaining to de

minimis (residential) groundwater extractors.



April2l .2026

3. BASIN-WIDE WATER USE FINDINGS (FROM STUDY DATA)

The Fee Report provides the follor,l'ing groundr.l'ater use distribution:

A. Total groundw-ater use: -1.710.169 acre-feet/year.

B. Agriculture: -1 .712.615 acre-feet (-96.7%).

C. Commercial/lndustrial: -39"866 acre-feer (-23%).
D. Residential: -17"688 acre-feet (-1.07o).

These figures demonstrate that groundwater demand is overw'helmingly agricultural,lvith
residential use representing approximately one rrercent of total basin-wide extraction.

4. EMPIRICAL RESIDENTIAL WATER USE METHODOLOGY

The Fee Report derives domestic residential u'ater use using the 2020 Ciry" o.l'Recl BlulJ'L:rbun

Water Management Plan and Census data:

A. Per capita use: -253 gallons per person per day.

B. Household size: 2.6 persons.

C. Total households: 24.934.

This results in:

Total domestic use: -1 8.370.5 acre-feet/-vear*

*The study concludes an average per household/parcel use of -0.74 acre-feet rrer household per

year.ThisaVerage,andthereforetotalresidential$'ateruseis
likely overestimated in this stud,v.

5. CONVERSION TO LAND-USE COEFFICIENTS AND METHODOLOGICAL GAP

While residential use is derir,'ed at the household (parcel) level, the proposed/presented fee

structure converts residential parcels into land-use intensitl' coefficients:

A. Urban residential: 0.75 acre-f-eet pgry
B. Rural residential: 1.25 acre-feet per acre

The 2026 fee report does not provide:

1 . A derivation linking the household-based estimate (-0.74 AF/household) to per-acre

coefficients.



April2l .2026

2. Documentation explaining how'rural residential differs fiom urban residential in

hydrologic demand.

3. Any validation of these coefficients against groundwater extraction data.

This creates a discrepancy betu'een the presented empirical estimation of residential $'ater use

and the fee allocation methodolog1,.

6. DISCREPANCY BETWEEN MODELED USE AND BILLING ASSUMPTIONS

Based on the fee study data. residential water use equates to approximatell":

. ^,0.19 acre-feet per acre per year (modeled equivalent)

Compared to billing assumptions:

. Urban residential: 0.75 AF/acre ("-3.9x higher)

. Rural residential: 1.25 AFlacre (-6.6x higher)

This indicates a substantial divergence between empiricalll'derived residential use and assigned

billing intensit,v.

7. PROPORTIONALITY CONCERNS UNDER PROP 26 AND PROP 218

. Under Proposition 26, regulator,v fees must not exceed the reasonable cost of providing the

service or mitigating the burden imposed

. Under Proposition 218. propert;--related fees must be proportional to the special benefit or

burden associated w-ith the propert)'.

Given that:

l. Residential use represents approximatell' -l7o of total basin groundrvater extraction.

2. Rural residential coefficients significantll' exceed modeled residential use intensitr'.

3. No derivation is provided linking empirical houseliold data to per-acre billing factors.

There is a substantial question whether the residential fee structure maintains a reasonable

proportional nexus to actual groundr,vater burden.

8. DE MINIMIS STATUS LNDER SGMA

Under Water Code $ 10730(a), GSAs ma), not impose fees on de minimis extractors unless such

users have been regulated under SGMA.



April2l.2026

Given that:

1. Residential users collectively represent approxirnately l"h of total groundlvater use,

2. Individual rural residential parcels represent a fraction of that total Agricultural pumping

c onstitutes approximatel,t, 9 7 
o/o of bas in demand.

3. There is a credible basis to consider rural residential users as de minimis extractors in the

context of basin-u'ide groundrvater sustainabilitl'.

4. No explicit finding in the 1-ee study suppofts a need to regulate rural residential uater

USCTS

5. The cost and burden to ''regulate" de minimis users out$'eighs an-v negligible gain.

I respectfulll'request that the Tehama County GSA Board:

Provide a documented derivation for the 1.25 AF/acre rural residential coefficient. including:

A. Data sources and methodologl'.

B. Explain how,household-based empirical r,vater use (-0.74 AF/household) r.ras converted

into land-use coeffi cients.

C. Make an explicit determination as to uhether rural residential users are considered de

minimis under SGMA Water Code $10730(a) and if de minimis users uill receive an

exemption from GSA admin and demand management fees.

D. Justify how the current residential allocation methodologl' satisfies proportionalitl'

requirements.

9. CONCLUSION

This protest does not oppose groundrvater sustainabilitl, funding obligations. Rather. it

challenges u'hether the residential fee methodology' is supported b1' a transparent. empiricalll

derived nexus betr.l'een actual grounduater use and assigned billing coefflcients. and'nvhether

rural residential users har.'e been properll' evaluated under SGMA's de minimis exemptioll

provisions. The fee report provides housel-rold-based u,ater use estimates but lacks a

coresponding derivation for rural residential per-acre coefficients. This discrepancl' narrants

formal revierv prior to adoption of the proposed fee structure.

In addition" I heard there is an updated fee report being sent out to some Tehama Countl'

residents. I har.,e not received this updated fee report. and I am on the mail chimp niailing list.

nor have I seen the updated f-ee report publicll' published.

Respectfully submitted.

Andreu, Grad.v (Tehama County- resident and groundu'ater user)



March 27.2026

Objection to the proposed Tehama County GSA administrative fee (as applied to de

minimis domestic users) presented at the 3/26126 TCFCWCD Meeting

To the Tehama Countv GSA Directors.

I submit this objection to the proposed Administrative Fee on the grounds that. as applied to de

minimis domestic groundu-ater users, the fee violates Proposition 26 of the Califbrnia

Constitution (Article XIII C, section 1(eX3)). In addition. the proposed fee violates prop 218.

1. The proposed fee lacks the required nexus to regulatory activity

Proposition 26 permits regulatory fees only to the extent they reflect the reasonable costs of
regulating the fee payer's activities. As explained rn Sultet"'s Pluce v. C'iry^ o/-Sun Jo.se (2021)" a

local agency must demonstrate that costs are tied to specific" permissible regulatory. activities-
such as permitting. inspections. or enforcement-performed in connection r.l'ith the pa1'or.

De minimis (domestic) users (in Tehama County) are not subject to meaningful regulatori' GSA

oversight. They are not metered, and their groundwater use-generally limited to tll'o acre-feet

for domestic purposes. consistent u'ith the highest beneficial use of water-is presumptiveli'

reasonable and non-injurious. This user groups' negligible impact is demonstrated b1' revieu'ing

the Tehama County GSA annual reports submitted to DWR. Accordingl.v. such users (in Tehama

County) are not required to annually report groundw'ater use. as their extraction is consistent.

predictable. and does not create impacts warranting monitoring or enforcement. As such. this

level of extraction does not require ongoing permitting, monitoring. or enforcement. Under

Proposition 26,the District (in its Groundr.r'ater Sustainability Agency capacitl') bears the burden

of demonstrating that an1, fee does not exceed the reasonable costs of regulating the pa1'or's

activities. Here. the GSA cannot meet that burden" as it has not identified an.v specific regulatory'

activity performed for. or necessitated by. de minimis domestic users. nor shou-n an1' reasonable

relationship betr,ry'een such users and the costs the Administrative Fee seeks to recover. The GSA

has not demonstrated that it incurs significant regulatory costs attributable to these users. Instead.

the Administrative Fee appears to fund generalized groundwater management activities.

including basin-u,ide planning. modeling. and program administration. These are programmatic

costs and are not chargeable under Proposition 26 Exception 3.

Water Code 10730(a) states: A groundwater sustainability agency (GSA) maf impose fees.

including, but not limited to. permit fees and fees on groundwater extraction or other regulated

activity, to fund the costs of a groundw-ater sustainabilit-v program. including. but not lin-rited to.

preparation. adoption. and amendment of a groundwater sustainability plan. and investigations.



March 27.2026

inspections, compliance assistance, enforcement, and program administration. including a

prudent reserve. A groundwater sustainabili impose a fee

subdivision on de minimis extractor unless the agenc)' has regulated the users pursuant to this

part.

In an informational document titled Domestic Well L'sers and the Sustainable Groundvater

Management Act (SGMAI found at www.waterboards.ca.gov (March 2016). The document

states:

1. Domestic v'ell u,sers generally'.fall within lhe SGMA de.linilion of a de ntinintis extractor

2. Most prfiate users of domestic v'ell.s use les.s than hto acrelfeet of toter per year

3. Each GSA v,ill deterntine the managemenl policies that v,ill apply to tlomestic vell users

under a groundu'ater sustuinubilitl'plan. One GSA nta1, choose to exentpl domestic well

users.from management altogether, y'hile another GSA ma!' need to incorporute

domestic y'ell users into basin monagentent in order lo address negatire q{lbcls cuttsed

b.y groundwaler extraction in lhe ba.sin

1. SGIA does not authorize GS4 's to require domestic v'ell users to meter their vells'

i. Domestic v,ell owners mat' be required to report groundv'aler inforntatiort trt a local GSA

as part of a sustainability plan

6. Domestic users ore not autontutically exempl.front managemenl b), state inlerventictn. The

State Water Resources C'ontrol Board ntuy place requirentents or restrictions on

domestic well users in o busin lhat has been designated probationarl'. If domestic well

extractions are likel)' to hat'e u substantial impact on the basin. domestic well otrners

uired to reDort individuul v lract ion informat i o rt d i r e ct

In a study titled. Hou, do Priyate Wells and Small Waler Systems Impact the Basin. presented b1'

John Ricker, Santa Margarita Groundwater Agencl' (December 2.2020') it states:

l.lndoor domestic water use accounts for 70% of overall w'ater used by this user group

2. 90% of indoor w-ater use is retumed via septic system

3. Outdoor use accounts for 30% and a portion of that is recharged

4.Depending on the geology. a significant portion of rural domestic water use is recharged

How has the Tehama Countl' GSA objectively determined that regulating de minimis users is

necessary within SGMA regulated subbasins. but not in the low priority subbasins in ri'hich thel'

are also the responsible GSA? Are (domestic) de minimis users engaged in a behavior that

warrants regulation in some subbasins but not others - even though their r,vater use is minimal

and primarily used for activities of dail.v living? Has the Tehama County GSA conducted a

similar study to the Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency? Has the GSA formalll' decided to

regulate de minimis users?

the State lVater Re.sources Control Board



March 27.2026

2. The Fee improperly recovers costs caused by other users

The administrative structure described in the proposed Ordinance exists primarill' due to

groundwater overdraft conditions and the need to regulate high-i,'olume extractors. De minimis

domestic users do not materially contribute to overdraft conditions.

The GSA's decision to exclude these users from the PMA (demand management) fbe

acknowledges that their impact is negligible. Hor,r,ever. the GSA simultaneously' seeks to impose

Administrative Fees that are driven b,v the same underlying conditions. This creates an internal

inconsistency and demonstrates that the Administrative Fee is not based on costs caused b1' de

minimis (domestic) groundwater users. As a result, the fee unlawfully shifts costs attributable to

large-scale groundw-ater users onto de minimis domestic users.

California Water Code I06

106. It is hereby declared to be the establishedpolicy o.f thi.s State that the use o.f'vater.for

domestic purpose,s is the highest use o.f-v'oter antl the nert highest use is'.for irrigcttion.

3. The Fee is disproportionate to any cost imposed by domestic users

Even if some minimal administrative activity (such as u'ell registration) applies to domestic

users. the District (acting as the GSA) must shor,v that the amount charged is proportional to

those costs.

The proposed ordinance does not provide a cost-of'-service anal-vsis demonstrating:

A. The actual cost of regulating domestic wellst

B. How those costs differ fiom those attributable to larger extractors: or

C. Hou'the fee amount reflects those differences.

Without such evidence- the fee is disproportionate and invalid under Proposition 26.

4. Similarly situated users are not charged

Domestic users outside of over drafted subbasins (in Tehama Countl') engage in the same

activities (groundr.l'ater extraction) and are subject to similar baseline requirements such as

mandatory well registration (for future lbe calculations). and monitoring. Hor,vever. the)' are not

charged comparable fees. This disparity demonstrates that the fee is not based on the regulated



March 27.2026

activity itself, but rather on subbasin-u'ide conditions. Proposition 26 does not permit fees based

on generalized program needs or geographic conditions absent a direct connectioll to the pa)'or's

conduct. In addition, it appears vacant parcel o\\'ners that don't use groundu,ater are being

exempted from the proposed programmatic fees without justification. Is it because these parcel

ow-ners are not engaged in activities that justify groundu'ater extraction or,'ersight? Is the GSA

claiming that any groundrvater extraction (even if negligible) warrants disproporlionate

regulatory oversight?

5. The Fee funds programmatic SGMA obligations

The GSA obligations under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act are programmatic in

nature. While those obligations ma,v justift regulatory actions. they do not permit the GSA to

recover broad program implementation costs through fees imposed on individuals unless those

costs are tied to specific regulatory activities attributable to those individuals. The

Administrative Fee. as structured. improperll' recovers such programmatic costs.

Conclusion:

For the foregoing reasons. the Administrative Fee. as applied to de minimis (domestic) users.

does not qualif,v as a valid regulator,v- fee under Proposition 26. The District in its capacity as the

GSA, has failed to demonstrate the required nexus and proporlionalitl,. and the f-ee improperll'

shifts costs caused by other users.

Accordingl,v, I respectfull,v request that the GSA:

1. Exempt de minimis (domestic) users from the programmatic Administrative Fee b1' not

"regulating" thern or.

2. Base the fee on a documented, activity-specific cost-of-service anall'sis limited to the

actual cost of regulating such users and justifj' the need to "regulate" such users to meet

the sustainability goals identified in the relevant gronndu,ater sustainabilitl' plans.

Additional items of concern:

l. The GSA is inconsistentll,' defining who is being regulated or charged. which shou's the f'ee is

not tied to actual regulatorS,- activities but instead designed to broadl,v capture revenue.

By. extending the f-ee to parcels that do not themselves extract groundwater but utilize
groundwater from neighboring w-ells. the GSA confirms that the charge is not tied to the

regulation of specific extraction activitl'. Instead. it is imposed based on land ounership and



March 27.2026

perceived benefit. il'hich is characteristic of a propert.y-related fee subject to Proposition 218 -
not a regulatory fee under Proposition 26. For example: If the County regulates a restaurant. it

does not charge the customers eating there for the cost of inspections. Regulation applies to the

operator-not everyone who benefits fiom the activitl'. This also applies to charges to municipal.

or community' water customers.

A. Hou' is the GSA ''regulating" parcels that use -{roundu'ater but don't extract

groundwater? Is the GSA ''regulating" customers that use water. or the uell ou'ner?

B. Areparcelsbeingchargedaprop2l8fee.orarer,l,ellownersbeingchargedaprop26
regulatory fee. or is it a combination of both?

It appears the GSA is imposing a propert)' fee (related to groundr.vater use) that is being

presented as a regulatory fee. Also. it seems the onl1, reason that (domestic) de nrinimis users are

being charged a "regulatory fee''. is because their parcel of land (that utilizes grounduater)

happens to reside in an area regulated b1'- the SGMA and not because the1,- impose actual costs

from their reasonable beneficial use of groundw'ater - the same reasonable beneficial use of
\.!'ater neighboring domestic wells (outside of the proposed fee area) utilize without "required"

regulation''for groundwater extraction oversight".

2. Will the GSA inform the public by mailers of the prop 218 majorit.v protest process and u'ill
the GSA halt adoption of the fee if a majoritl,protest occurs - even though thel'are not stating

it's a propeq' related f-ee? In other r,r'ords. u'ill the fee be implemented fulll' to compl1 'uvith prop

218. oru'ill it be aprop 218 ''like" process. If stated by the GSA to be aprop 218 ''like" process.

ilill the GSA define and explain the proposed process so impacted parlies can be adequatell'

informed and prepared?

3. Will the GSA demonstrate hou'pror,'iding er,'olr,ing information about long term fees best

serves the public and u,h), the GSA failed to provide ongoing public fee discussions and rneeting

agendas over the last few 1'ears?

From s Tehoma County- GSA well registration letter:

Data collected through they'ell registratiotl progrumwill be usecl lo support the derelopnrcnt o.f'

a v'ell sizeiu*pe based-funding ntechani^sm to prot'itle ktng term.fimcling.for the G5.4. All
properties that extract groundwatervill be leyied afee. All./irture./'ee.svill be opproretl b1'the

Tehama County Flood C)ontrol and lN'uter Conserralion District Board ofDirectors ttt public

meetings, n'ith opportunities.for public comment. Alier the initial date collection period, ct long

term funding mechanism vrill be estttblisherl. (GSA Well Registration Letter)



March 27.2026

A member of the public could reasonably'conclude that all wells in Tehama Countl'riill be

charged a well size/type fee - notiust the wells in impacted subbasins.

From the llll8l24 Tehama Counh Flood Control and Water Consen'ation District

Agenda Packet:

Requested Actions - Approve the ney' FAQ sheets ./br the.linal Well Regisn'mion .\lailer
Background Information-The.lbe in Re.solution 9-2022 sunsets after the 2025 tax.veason. This

v'e be the-final.form mailed before the-fee expires. Attached is the upclated F.lQ.sheet

representing ney, round specific'informtttion. stoting that the sunsel o./'the./be does not eliminate

the requirement to regi.ster. und clcn'if ing potential consequences./br.failure to contply tith the

requirentent to regisl er.

A member of the public could reasonabl-v conclude that the mailer 
"vould 

be sent befbre the fee

expires.

From the 3126126 Tehama Countl' Flood Control Agenda Packet (item 9):

Section 8. Required re.\ponse to the well registrotiotl sut're)'- A. Ptu'suant lo Re.volution 9-2022.

the District Groundv,ater Executit,e hus been directetl to ,sto're1'the propet'ties v'ithin the

District. 2026 shall be tlte..finul )'eur.litr this stu'ye!' ancl shcll hereina.lier be re./brred to us the

2026 Well Registrotion Survq'.

A member of the public could reasonabl-v conclude that the 2024 registration letter u'asn't sent

before the fee expired as directed.

From A KRCTV nev's article:

Ultimately, those y'ho think the1, ure un/hirly, chcu'gecl because lhey don't use groundtruter till
be eliminated.fi'om the long lerm co.sl,s of'vctter regtilution vithin the c'ounty. So, il ii in their hest

interest to go through rhis process noy so they don't pa1, in the./irture. (Tehania Count)' agenc)-

to appeal court ruling on u'ell registration fees. krctr'.com.2ll0l25)

A member of the public could reasonably conclude that a decision u'as made (bl the Directors)

to exclude these individuals from long term f-ees.

Refer to the 212312022 Tehama Count.v Groundu'ater Commission Meeting audio recording for
(agenda item 7) Groundy,ater Su^stainabilitl, Funding ],lechunisnt Recomntentlulion arailable at

Tehamacounty. le g i star. com

A member of the public could reasonablr, conclude f'rom attending this rneeting. or listening to

the recording. that all APN owners (in the Count.v) u,ill receir,'e an administrative 1-ee based off



March 27.2026

parcel size. and that a second fee rvould be assessed based on potential u.ater use uhich nould be

calculated by the number of il'ells one o\\'ns and their diameter.

From the 2128122 Tehama County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Meeting

Minutes:

Director Moule asked hotr .fees.for purcels less thun one acre till be determinecl. -\[r. Jenson

statedinitially thel,will be charged apercentuge ol 0.29 bused on their ptl'cel .size. Jh'Jenson

clarified that.fbllotring irnplementation olthe yell clionteter-bo.sed.lbe, lhe .fees' r,.ill be combined.

Mr Jenson discussed the well permit data ayuilable since ntid 1980s and the well regi.stt'cttion

data needed to e./Jbcriyell, gTrr*. the./be.s necessary to t'Ltn the Grounrhralet' Strsttrinubiliq'

Progrant: .fees v'ill be bas'etl on v'ell cusing diameter.

A member of the public could reasonabll' conclude that there will be a long-term parcel-based

fee and a u,ell casing diameter fee across all of Teharna Countl'and not just specitic subbasins.

One likely u-ould assume this is the reason the r,r'ell registration $'as sent Countl'nide and r'vas

not subbasin specific.

From the 3l2ll22 Tehama Count-v Flood Control and Water Conservation District Meeting

Minutes:

()onsider acceptance o/ the Tehamu C'oung' Grounclv'ater ()omntission.fimcling reL'otttmendation

o.f 0.29 per acre counrytricla on tlrc net't tax roll. tith o coun\tricle per well./be to be placed ttn

the 2021 tax roll.

A member of the public would likell,conclude that a count,vwide per u'ell fee riould be placed

on the 2024 tax roll.

One might reasonably question u'h1, this didn't occur in2024 and u'h1' ongoing long-term fbe

discussions were not agendized until the end of 2025. One might also question rr hr vears \\'ent

by that could have been utilized lbr public long-term GSA fee discussions.

I hope to see these concerns considered and discr"rssed betbre adopting long term GSA f-ees. I

also hope to see more open public discussion among the GSA Directors regarding fees. and

reasonable time given to stakeholders to comment on proposed f'ees. In addition. I hope this

provides perspective on w-hy some might feel confused and liustrated r.r,ith hor,r the GSA

communicates information and operates.

Regards.

Andrew Grad.u-

Tehama County resident and propertv o$'ner



March 27.2026



tststststs#
NNNNND_IN(,5(,rn

NNNNN)ooooo
NNNNN.-LN(,5(,t

NI\)NNNoooooNN]\)NNjN(..)s(,t
NNNNNoooooN)N)NNT\)rNr(,A(,l

P_@-O-!-(' oooo!N 'oooootooooo_+
v

N)NJ.JJ

-o) -(, -! -! -@ooo\l(ooooooooooo

NN.AJ.A(Jt(r{50,
N)Or(oo)-5 -O -O -(,r -O,

oooooooooo
* 

= 
"s.B "s!P888ESooo

oa
!

5=AZ

TErr
,A'

8E
n{
@

7t
tn

@,C)2C

HEEBEE sBsHH= E!EHHB EdHdH g
6H

z
T
m

rno

J$ -(,rut (ooooo

o
o
oo
t
N-(",
oo

Z'@>oo
(, (,t
-(J.' -5
ooOO

7
m9n

f,c,, t-8-E EFE5=7
Fr

EUHEg
.^N)(rj

rEEH'g rEgEE

:'5()
o

n
L

e 8*N) !6',

E E Hq
N -{ qr'

CD M-o

CZBOEc>

=5d83$48bx
;oA)zE6

-(,(r)
Oo

s--
8H



NNI\)NNlooooOm
1$NI\)NNDjN)(,s(,lv

N) l$ N N) l\)ooooo
NNNN)N-rN)(,5(,t

NNN)NNooooo
NNi$NN)
-aNO)5(,1

NN)NNN
OOOOONNNN)N)
-LN)(})5(,l

-o 90 -o _! -(, oooo{N I
ooooofoooooa

v

N)N).AJJ
-o, -o) -{ } po
ooo!(ooooooooooo

NN)-I-rr(,r(r{50)
N)O-r(OO)-5 -o -o -(,r -o,

oooooooooo
*="sF.s:=888tsEooo

oo
!

5=ctz
TEr'
imHt

v{o

7
m

E,c'2c
gsEccE EBEHc= EdEHHE EdHEs g

or;

z
T
m

mo

Js I'(Jr (ooooo
J.\.

P8-o

o
o
oo
I

Ju(,oo

Z'eDoo
J' J''(,soooo

v
m9nJ U\'

*<n rE'8 EEv -ts5=?
Fr

HEHEEGEEHE
-L UN

--lLD-4. tt   -E -r>5888

J-5
oo

n
Cq 8*JN 4{

E D 89
N {or'
CD M-

E'

CZaoEo

=3si8s4shl
i9E6

-(,
(.l,o
O



ooo6oEl
N)NNN)N)DrN)(,)5(J.|n

-o-@-o-!J, o
OOO!N I
ooooof;ooooo_:i

NNN)I\)N)
OQOOO
NNNNNrN)CU5(,r

N)N)I\)NNooooo
I$NNNN
-AN(,S(,l

NNI$Nf\)ooo()oNN)NN)N
-\N(r)5(,

N)N-r.JJg) -(".) -{ --J _@ooo\l(oo()oooooooo

NN)-r-ArulcJ{50,N)Or(OO)
b -o -o -<lr -o,
oooooooooo

*=s"B"E:P888ESooo

oo
!

5lOZ

TE
l-t

imHt
v{o

F
m

Ezc
HEEccf sBEHES E;EHHB EEHeHfr=

o#

z
T
m

rn
o

J$ J.rI(,l (ooooo

=o
o
oo
I
N-(,
oo

Z'6
Doo

7
mo,V.aoo=

=,, 
tEE EF

-iFtr
uNs"EE

-^N)<..lj
*E E'H g rEHB.3

5oo

n
Cq 8*rN 4g

E B- 8gN {o,'
CD M-0

CZBO

ridi$$lsHl
=oNzE6

(,.G'

oo

-u. ;-
8H

(}) (,t-(,'5
oooo



tststststs#
NNNNN)DrN)(,5(,tV

I$NNNNooooo
NNN}NN.rN)(,s(,

N)NNNNooooo
I$N)I$NN..A N) (' 5 (,r

NNNNNooooot\)r$NNN)rl\)o)5(,r

-o -@ -o -! _o) o
ooo!N I

ooooof;ooooo=.

NN)-tr-r
-o) -(.t) -! -! !oooo{(ooooooooooo

NN)-Irr(,tcJ!so)
N) O -a (O Cr'-s -o b -<rr -o,
o()o()oo(fooo

*=3F.8
HEEEH

oo
!

5I@z
TE
J-'

*.mHt
v{
@

7
m

.0"e)t?'eE 
EBEHEE EdEHgE EEHdHo=-(,l E -o -o, -o C -o -o -o -G,

8 8I8 81 8 I 8 8 6H

z
3
m

rao

JU JNol(oOOoo
s--
8H

=o
o
o
o.

I
T\)
(,oo

n
rn9nJ LJ|J'z>,,88-5EF

o o +D
-l-Fr

BNHE"ErEE.HE rBHEE

5()o

v
E

^. C)il

JN fid
E E EqN {6'

CD M_o

CZ+oEo
35$ifi$lskl

i986

o)-(,
oo

(.r) (rl
t-soooo

z'cn
o



NNNNNAoooo6]rl
-\N)(,s(,tn

NI$NT\)NoooooNI$T$NN
-rN)(,5(,|

N)N)I$NN)ooooo
t$NNNN
-LN)OJ5(,I

NI\)NT$Nooooo
NNN)NNrl\)(,l)5(,

I_@-o-!J,oooo!N I
oooootooooo=r

v

N)NJJJ
9, -Cr -! _! -@ooo{(0oooooooooo

NN)-r-ar(rt C[) \l 5 O,NOr(OO)-5 -O -O -(,l -o,

oooooooooo
*="sF"s
^-.e888tsEooo

o
tt,
!

5=o=
EEr'
im
EE

n{o

7m
E,olz--

gEEccE EssHe= EdEHHB EdHdH g
6ffi

zI
FI

mo

N9(Jr (oooOO

o
o
oo
I
N
-(r)

oo

Z'@
o

oJ (Jl
-G' -5
()Ooo

7
m9nFIC

=,nrEgiE=r
BBHEE

-^Nc..lj
rEEH'g rEHE=

--5oo

n
E

a 8*tu !6'
E E Hg

N {0,'
CD M-

E,

CZaoEo

=I$8fislskH
=oA)zE6

(J0
-(")

oo

A.-

8H




